Senate Standing Committee on the Environment, Communications, 
Information Technology & the Arts
ANSWERS TO QUESTIONS ON NOTICE

Environment and Water Resources

Budget Estimates 2007-2008, May 2007

Outcome:
1. Environment


Question No: 1
Division/Agency: 
Policy Coordination Division


Topic: 
Advertising

Hansard Page ECITA: 
93, 94, 95 (22/05/07)

Senators McLucas and Wong asked:

Senator McLUCAS – When was that tender let?

Mr Tucker – I have not got the dates. I would not hazard a guess. I can give that to you on notice.

Senator WONG – Can you tell us the commencement date of the contract:

Senator McLUCAS – That is the question I am asking about, the work that is being done by – 

Mr Tucker – My essential answer is that I do not know the answer to that question. I would have to confirm it.

Senator McLUCAS – How long would that take?

Senator McLUCAS – Can we have the value of the tender to Blue Moon?

Mr Tucker – I do not have that with me, but we can get that answer.

Senator McLUCAS – Can you get that tomorrow?

Mr Tucker – Yes, we should be able to.

Answer:

On 16 April 2007, Blue Moon Research and Planning Pty Ltd were appointed on a single select arrangement to undertake developmental, formative and evaluation research for the Small Business and Household Climate Change Action initiative.

As the campaign is in development, the extent of the research task and its final cost is yet to be determined.

Outcome:
1. Environment


Question No: 2
Division/Agency: 
Policy Coordination Division


Topic: 
Advertising

Hansard Page ECITA: 
23 (22/05/07)

Senator McLUCAS asked:

Senator McLUCAS—Yes. In terms of the portfolio, how would I find out what other agencies have spent on advertising?

Mr Tucker—We would have to ask each of them. We can take that on notice.
Answer:

This question is answered on Hansard Page ECITA 52 of 22 May 2007 ie: ‘that advertising by the Sydney Harbour Federation Trust for this year is nil. The National Water Commission is nil. The Bureau of Meteorology is nil. The Director of National Parks is nil. The Great Barrier Reef Marine Park Authority I have been informed has had two campaigns, one called Don’t Be The Catch of the Day, the zoning education advertising, which was $140,000, and also one by Reef House on water quality advertising, which was $41,000.’
Outcome:
1. Environment


Question No: 3
Division/Agency: 
Policy Coordination Division


Topic: 
Market Research

Hansard Page ECITA: 
25 (22/05/07)

Senator McLUCAS asked:

Senator McLUCAS—Has market research been undertaken on the climate change proposal to this point?

Mr Morvell—I am not absolutely sure. I would have to come back to you on that one. I am just not sure of the status of the particular elements. I know that we have staff who are working and planning, but I do not have information on the extent of what has actually occurred at this point.

Senator McLUCAS—No placements have been booked?

Mr Morvell—Not that I am aware of, no.

Senator McLUCAS—Design work?

Mr Morvell—Certainly there has been some conceptual work and initial discussions with designers have commenced. I am certain that it has not resulted in expenditure of funds, and I am not sure of the exact point of any contractual arrangements.

Senator McLUCAS—Is there someone here who can give us that information?

Mr Morvell—If you let me take that on notice, I will come back to you during the day on the specifics of where we are with some of those things
Answer:

Developmental research was undertaken from 27 April to 3 May to help inform the the planning and development of the Small Business and Household Climate Change Action initiative.

Market testing of advertising agency creative concepts associated with this initiative was undertaken from 5-7 May, and 21-22 May.

The development of these concepts involved some design work.

No media placements have been booked.

Outcome:
1. Environment


Question No: 4
Division/Agency: 
Policy Coordination Division


Topic: 
Advertising

Hansard Page ECITA: 
47 (22/05/07)

Senator McLUCAS asked:

Mr Tucker—In accordance with government policy, all campaigns are referred to that committee.

Senator McLUCAS—And what dates were the necessary approvals granted?

Mr Tucker—I would have to take that on notice, and I do not have the detail, but they all would have received their approvals in time to allow us to proceed in this manner for this year….. But I could easily obtain those dates for you on notice.
Answer:

The Defeating the Weed Menace Community and Industry Engagement Plan, creative agency brief, list of creative agencies, PR brief and list of PR consultants were approved by the Ministerial Committee on Government Communications (MCGC) on 28 February 2007.  This work is leading to a campaign which has not yet received final approval by the MCGC. 

The Government announced on 4 March that it would undertake a Small Business and Household Climate Change Action initiative. 

On 16 April the department received MCGC approval for its strategy to develop the information campaign associated with this initiative, and for the associated agency briefs.

The campaign is still being developed and has not received final MCGC approval.

Outcome:
1. Environment


Question No: 5
Division/Agency: 
Policy Coordination Division


Topic: 
Climate Change Campaign

Hansard Page ECITA: 
53 (22/05/07)

Senator McLUCAS asked:

Senator McLUCAS – There is not a proposal to do an information campaign on climate change?

Mr Tucker – We have the appropriation for next year for that money. We have no appropriation at the moment to deliver that program. That was in the budget package.

Senator McLUCAS – Is there a proposal to do a mail-out between now and the end of June?

Mr Tucker – I will have to take that on notice. I do not recall that. We are doing developmental work for the campaign for next year and that is the only appropriation that we have for that particular piece of work, but nothing comes directly to my mind.

Answer:

The Government announced on 4 March that it would run a Small Business and Household Climate Change Action initiative, and that part of that initiative would involve:  “all Australian households receiving information explaining change change and giving them tips on how to become more energy efficient in their homes and their workplaces”.

The information campaign associated with this initiative is still being developed.

Outcome:
1. Environment


Question No: 6
Division/Agency: 
Policy Coordination Division


Topic: 
Climate Change Campaign

Hansard Page ECITA: 
54 (22/05/07)

Senator McLUCAS asked:

Senator McLUCAS—Going back to the original question in terms of what campaigns are planned from now to the end of this financial year, you said you thought there was one on weeds but it had not been ticked off on?

Mr Tucker—That is correct.

Senator McLUCAS—What was going to be the cost of that if it gets ticked off on?

Mr Tucker—I would have to take that on notice. I do not have that detail with me.
Answer:

The total budget for the whole of the Defeating the Weed Menace Community and Industry Engagement Plan, if approved by the MCGC, is up to $4 million. 

Outcome:
1. Environment


Question No: 7
Division/Agency: 
Policy Coordination Division


Topic: 
Approvals for climate change advertising

Hansard Page ECITA: 
54 (22/05/07)

Senator McLUCAS asked:

Senator McLUCAS – Were any of the campaigns referred to the ministerial committee on government communication for this financial year?

Mr Tucker – In accordance with government policy, all campaigns are referred to that committee.

Senator McLUCAS – And what dates were the necessary approvals granted?

Mr Tucker – I would have to take that on notice, and I do not have the detail, but they all would have received their approvals in time to allow us to proceed in this manner for this year

Answer:

Defeating the Weed Menace campaign

This answer is the same as that in Question 4 which relates to the planned Defeating the Weed Menace campaign.  

The Defeating the Weed Menace Community and Industry Engagement Plan, creative agency brief and list of creative agencies were approved by the Ministerial Committee on Government Communications on 28 February 2007.  This work is leading to a campaign which has not yet received final approval by the MCGC. 

Climate Change Campaign

The Government announced on 4 March that it would undertake a Small Business and Household Climate Change Action initiative.

On 16 April the department received MCGC approval for its strategy to develop the information campaign associated with this initiative, and for the associated agency briefs.

The campaign is still being developed and has not received final MCGC approval.

Outcome:
1. Environment


Question No: 8
Division/Agency: 
Policy Coordination Division


Topic: 
Advertising campaign

Hansard Page ECITA: 
54-55 (22/05/07)

Senator McLUCAS asked:

(a) Senator McLUCAS—Thank you for that. Could you also take on notice the dates of the campaigns beginning and completing for those information campaigns that have completed?

Mr Tucker—We can do that.

Senator McLUCAS— And start dates for those that are still on track?

Mr Tucker—They would be projected start dates.

Mr Tucker—I said there will be times when we come up with ideas for campaigns that we will take

forward through the approval process, and the government will not agree with that campaign, will think it is not worth doing and it will not be pursued. It is not a clear, ‘We have had an idea; it’s going to happen’ type of process.

(b) Senator McLUCAS—For each of the campaigns that we have talked about, could you provide the total cost of each information and advertising campaign, and then break that down into any market research, including opinion polling, that you might have done and any evaluation following a campaign?

Mr Tucker—I can do that. I think I probably have provided you all the material previously in my evidence, but I will check to see if there is any more information.

Answer:

(a) The planned Defeating the Weed Menace campaign and the possible Climate Change have not yet started.  A commencement date is dependent on final approval from the Ministerial Committee on Government Communication.


(b)  The above two campaigns have not started. 

In regard to the planned weeds campaign, the total estimated cost of the campaign is up to $4 million.  Expenditure on research for the weeds campaign was $63,000 for the 2006-07 financial year.

In relation to the Small Business and Household Climate Change Action initiative, Budget funding of $52.8 million over five years has been announced and allocated to this initiative, including for the associated information campaign.

As the campaign is still in development, the extent of the research task and its final cost is yet to be determined.  To date a total of $149 800 (GST exclusive) has been expended for developmental and concept testing research.
Outcome:
1. Environment


Question No: 9
Division/Agency: 
Policy Coordination Division


Topic: 
Advertising Tender Process

Hansard Page ECITA: 
56 (22/05/07)

Senator McLUCAS asked:

Senator McLUCAS – How do you select that agency?

Mr Tucker – That agency, again, is selected through the process that the government has put in place through the committee concerned.

Senator McLUCAS – Was it tendered?

Mr Tucker – I would have to take that on notice; I do not have the detail of each one. But my recollection, again, is that there is a panel of providers who can do this that are selected from

Senator McLUCAS – Could you provide, then, for each of the tenders that were let the number of tenders and the time line from announcing the tendering process to completion of that process?

Answer:  

All Australian Government campaigns involve a select tender process overseen by the Government Communications Unit (GCU) and approved by the Ministerial Council on Government Communication (MCGC). The shortlist of consultants is generated from the Register of consultants maintained by the GCU on the advice of the GCU.

A tender process was undertaken to select the advertising agency for the Small Business and Household Climate Change Action Initiative. Five agencies were approached to bid for the task. The tender process began on 16 April, and the successful agency, Universal McCain, was selected on 16 May.

The consultants to undertake the market research and public relations work associated with the initiative were selected from a panel of providers held by the Government Communications Unit. 

For the Defeating the Weed Menace, Community and Industry Engagement Plan, the creative agency brief was sent to five agencies on 1 March 2007.  The agencies then presented their strategy and creative responses to the evaluation panel on 3 April 2007.    The MCGC selected the successful agency on 28 May 2007. 
Outcome:
1. Environment


Question No: 10
Division/Agency: 
Policy Coordination Division


Topic: 
Advertising Campaigns/Contracts

Hansard Page ECITA: 
56 (22/05/07)

Senator McLUCAS asked:

Senator McLUCAS – There is a song about them. What is the nature of the contract between the department and Blue Moon?

Mr Tucker – I do not have the details with me. It would be a normal contract that we have for these types of campaigns for doing a market research initiative. I imagine it would cover some of the things I described before. What are the things that will grab people’s attention, that will get them to change behaviours and take personal action to reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

Senator McLUCAS – How are they intending to conduct that research?

Mr Tucker – Again, without having the material before me, I imagine it is the same method that is used for market research for all campaigns in terms of speaking to a cross-section of people to see their reaction.

Senator McLUCAS – When did that happen?

Mr Tucker – I do not have the date with me, but I can easily take that on notice.

Answer:

Developmental market research was undertaken from 27 April to 3 May. 

Research to focus test creative concepts was undertaken from 5 to 7 May and from 21 to 22 May.

Outcome:
1. Environment


Question No: 11
Division/Agency: 
Policy Coordination Division


Topic: 
Advertising 

Hansard Page ECITA: 
59 (22/05/07)

Senator McLUCAS asked:

Senator McLUCAS—Has Crosby Textor undertaken any services for the department?

Mr Tucker—I think we have answered that question before, and I think the answer, from my memory, is no, but I can go back and confirm that.

Senator McLUCAS—Thank you. I will put those on notice so that you can answer them in full

Answer:

Crosby Textor has not undertaken any services for the Department in the 2006-07 financial year.

Outcome:
1. Environment


Question No: 12
Division/Agency: 
Policy Coordination Division


Topic: 
Advertising 

Hansard Page ECITA: 
85 (22/05/07)

Senator McLUCAS asked:

Senator McLUCAS asked – What else is part of the package that is being market tested?

Mr Tucker – I would have to take that on notice. I do not have all the material with me.

Answer:

Creative advertising concepts and a draft booklet were focus tested.

Outcome:
1. Environment


Question No: 13
Division/Agency: 
Policy Coordination Division


Topic: 
Advertising 

Hansard Page ECITA: 
93 (22/05/07)

Senator McLUCAS asked:

Senator McLUCAS  – Is there a draft television ad, for example?

Mr Tucker – I would have to take that on notice. 

Answer:

Creative concepts for television advertising have been developed but advertisements have yet to be produced. 

Outcome:
1. Environment


Question No:  16
Division/Agency:
Policy Coordination Division

Topic:
Assistant Minister’s Responsibilities

Hansard Page ECITA:
121 (22/05/07)

Senator Wong asked:

You might recall on the last occasion, Mr Borthwick, I asked you some questions about the assistant minister’s responsibilities and you indicated it was a matter yet to be fully worked out between the two ministers in the portfolio. We had some discussion about the organisational chart, which has the assistant minister, Mr John Cobb, kind of out here. Have you now been advised what he is responsible for?
Answer/s:

Assistant Minister Cobb is responsible for the following: 

· Overseeing portfolio activities for terrestrial park management (for example Uluru - Kata Tjuta, Kakadu and Booderee National Parks), other than the national reserve issues in view of the linkage with broader land management issues. 
· World and National Heritage management, other than statutory decisions under the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999. 
· Day to day operations of the Bureau of Meteorology, other than the water resources information function and climate change modelling. 
· The Australian Antarctic Division, other than scientific issues relating to climate change. 
· Regulation of uranium mining around the Alligator Rivers Region. 
· The Office of the Renewable Energy Regulator. 
· Administration of Envirofund grants, Community Water Grants, Asia Pacific Focal Point for World Heritage, Australian Biological Resources Study Participatory Programme, Australian Science Grants (contributing to Australia's Antarctic Science Program), Grants to Historic Churches and Cathedrals Programme, Historic Shipwrecks Programme and the National Heritage Investment Initiative. 
· Product Stewardship for Oil Programme. 
Outcome:
1. Environment


Question No:  64
Division/Agency:
Policy Coordination Division


Indigenous Policy Branch

Topic:
Indigenous Employment Programmes

Hansard Page ECITA:
Written Question on Notice

Senator Wong asked:

(a) How was the 400 new jobs figure (announced in the Budget) arrived at? Did DEH have input into this budget initiative? 

(b) Has the Department prepared a plan for where these 400 new jobs will go? If not, when will the department prepare this plan?

(c) If so, how many of those new jobs will be in

· policy/office work

· Indigenous Protected Areas

· National parks

· Land and sea rangers and NRM work more broadly

(d) How many Indigenous people did the Department employ in 2006-07?


What percentage of total staff did this represent?

(e) How many Indigenous people does the Department now employ?


What percentage of total staff does this represent?

(f) How many of those Indigenous people are engaged in natural resource management work?

(g) How many of those Indigenous people carry out work in national parks?

(h)
Please provide a breakdown per state and territory? 

Answer/s:

(a) The Department had input into the Budget initiative A better future for Indigenous Australians - building an Indigenous workforce in government service delivery announced by the Minister for Families, Community Services and Indigenous Affairs, which included a total of more than 800 positions costing $97.2 million over four years.  The initiative aims to convert CDEP positions into jobs across Australia in environment and heritage protection, education, childcare, night patrols in Indigenous communities and community care.  

The Department received an allocation of $47.6 million under this initiative, which will be delivered through the Working on Country  programme.  This programme aims to contract Indigenous people to deliver environmental outcomes to the Australian Government.  Up to $5.65 million will be available for 

on-ground work in 2007 – 2008.

Yes the Department did have input into the Indigenous employment programmes within the Department.

(b) The Working on Country component of the initiative A better future for Indigenous Australians - building an Indigenous workforce in government service delivery is currently underway with applications received from 47 communities across Australia.  Current expectations are of up to 100 jobs being funded this financial year.

(c) Notwithstanding that proposal assessment is still underway, it is expected that the vast majority of jobs will be for ranger type work.

(d) The Department of the Environment and Water Resources employed fifty self-identified Indigenous people as ongoing employees in 2006. This figure represents about three percent of total staff for this period.

(e) Ongoing Departmental employees as at 30 May 2007 were 1761, of which 58 are Indigenous staff.  This represents 3.3 percent of total.
(f) There are two Indigenous departmental employees working in the Natural Resource Management Programmes Division.  In addition, 11 Indigenous people are employed as Indigenous Land Management Facilitators to assist the involvement of Indigenous people in natural resource management, with one additional position to be recruited.

(g) There are 42 Indigenous people ongoing employees in the Parks Australia Division.

(h) Indigenous people working in Australian Government managed national parks:

	State
	No.

	NT
	28

	NSW/ACT
	12

	Total
	40


